
CITY OF CORVALLIS 
MINUTES OF THE CIVIC BEAUTIFICATION & URBAN FORESTRY  

ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
JUNE 9, 2016 

 
Attendance 
Owen Dell, Chair 
Tom Cook 
Jeff Cope 
Ruby Moon 
Larry Passmore 
Angelica Rehkugler 
Bill Coslow, OSU Liaison 
 
Absent/Excused 
Jennifer Killian, Vice Chair 
Jennifer Moreland 
 

Staff 
Jude Geist, Parks Supervisor 
Jon Pywell, Forester 
Mark Lindgren, Recorder  
 
Guests 
Joe Moceus 

 
SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 
 

  
Agenda Item 

 
Summary of Recommendations 

I. Subcommittee meetings  

II. Call to Order  

III.  Vegetation Presentation  

IV. Approval of March 10, April 14, and 
May 12, 2016 Minutes 

 

V. Community Comments  

VI. Sub-Committee Reports  

VII.  
 
June Farmers Market- Planning and 
Booth Sign-up 

 

VIII. OSU Liaison Reports  

IX. Staff Reports- If Questions  

X. Adjourn.  
The next meeting will be held July 14, 2016 at 8:30 a.m., at the 
Avery Park Admin building conference room.  

 
CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 
 
I. SUB-COMMITTEE MEETINGS.  
 

 



CBUF Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2016 
Page 2 of 5 
 
II. CALL TO ORDER. 

Chair Owen Dell opened the meeting at 9:05 a.m.  
Angelica Rehkugler related that several people she talked to at the recent CBUF booth 
expressed interest in CBUF meetings, but balked at the 8:30 a.m. weekday meeting times.  
 
Larry Passmore noted he was resigning from CBUF due to a family illness; CBUF 
members thanked him for his years of service.  
 
Visitor Joe Moceus stated that he was interested in sustainability and trees.  
 
 

III. VEGETATION PRESENTATION.   
Larry Passmore displayed the foliage of the common native sword fern, which adapt well 
to many yards. He noted that it’s much quicker to bob old shoots in January, since it’s hard 
to prune away the old dead shoots among newer shoots later on.  
 
 

IV. REVIEW OF MINUTES- April 14, 2016  
Moon noted that some of the ideas and projects tend to get lost; we need to regularly review 
Action Items at meetings who has agreed to do what. Forester Jon Pywell suggested a 
committee member set up a GoogleDoc to share ideas; Dell will follow up. 
 
Jeff Cope moved and Ruby Moon seconded to approve the March 10, 2016 minutes as 
presented; motion passed. 
 
Ruby Moon moved and Angelica Rehkugler seconded to approve the April 14, 2016 
minutes as presented; motion passed. 
 
Angelica Rehkugler moved and Jeff Cope seconded to approve the May 12, 2016 minutes 
as presented; motion passed. 
 

V.  COMMUNITY COMMENTS.  None. 
 

VI. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS.   
Urban Forestry Subcommittee.   
Forester Jon Pywell reported that Angelica Rehkugler will work with Jennifer Killian on a 
letter to the Canterbury neighborhood asking for participation in street tree planting there. 
He’s ordered 114 bare root trees for fall planting, noting that bare root trees are much 
cheaper ($35 to $65) and lighter but must be pre-ordered far in advance. The department 
bought an AirSpade last year and can borrow the compressor needed to power it from 
Public Works, which greatly helps in tree planting. He said offering only three choices to 
adjacent homeowners is easier for them. Pywell noted containerized trees often have 
problems with root structure (resulting from roots circling around pots).  
 
Owen Dell related a few Farmers Market booth visitors related they’d had trouble with 
large trees; we could have a list of trees appropriate for given areas. Moon said another 



CBUF Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2016 
Page 3 of 5 
 

person wanted tree identification at his school. Moon noted many people now have dead 
and dying birch trees. Dell said the G-T could do an article on ten smaller trees; Pywell 
suggested working with Cope on an article in fall prior to planting in November.  
 
Recorder Mark Lindgren highlighted the well-done Pacific Power brochures on small trees; 
Rehkugler said they should be distributed at CBUF booths. Pywell said there have been a 
lot, but perhaps may need to be re-ordered. 
 
 
Civic Beautification Subcommittee.  
Cook said he’d gotten comments on plants choices for plantings. Supervisor Jude Geist 
will send out a Doodle poll for a meeting next week. Cook said that the first planting will 
be at the southeast corner of the intersection near the downtown Beanery on 2nd Street, and 
we’ll move north on plantings from there. He’s photographed beds and identified plants 
that have thrived in those locations and conditions over the years. 
 
 

VII. JUNE FARMERS MARKET- PLANNING AND BOOTH SIGN-UP 
Dell related he’d had several good conversations at the booth, but we need hooks and 
activities. People have questions and express concerns. Some people did know who we 
were, but we need to do more outreach- CBUF doesn’t mean anything to some people. 
Rehkugler felt there was a good turnout and definitely worthwhile; the challenge is to find 
people to staff the booth. Dell said people took literature that addressed their issues. 
 
The next booth date is June 18; Dell distributed a sign-up sheet. We need to pick up the 
booth crate on Friday. Rehkugler said the crate needs to be replenished. Passmore 
highlighted the idea of stickers, popular with kids, which can be given out- it’s a good hook 
for booths. Geist said we have a budget for outreach; this could help with branding. 
Rehkugler said we need to better use booths to get people to sign up and do beautification 
nominations. 
 
Dell related that rack cards are also helpful with starting conversations at booths. Geist said 
the issue has come up repeatedly, and suggested a vote at next meeting. Moon said we need 
a branding discussion first; Geist replied we can have that conversation. Rehkugler said we 
may need help with that. There was agreement to have that discussion at the July meeting.  
 
Dell noted there was only morning sign-ups; he’ll contact Jennifer. Rehkugler said it’s 
easier to work in teams of two. Dell said we need a few more members of CBUF. Geist 
encouraged suggestions for CBUF nominations for the two vacancies. 
 
Moon complained about drunks destroying trees- likely students. Pywell said if he has a 
sense who vandalized a tree, he’ll work through the City Attorney. Passmore said in the 
Arnold Way area, neighbors placed three or four stakes around trees, with welded wire 
attached, in order to protect trees from angry drunks, and that solved the problem. OSU 
Liaison Coslow said it is a chronic problem on campus; he said there is some progress with 
the Greek system. Cook said one researcher found damage typically occurred after taverns 



CBUF Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2016 
Page 4 of 5 
 

closed, by young white males. It was found that it helped to plant large caliper trees, 
surrounded by ¾” rebar, with the trees limbed up high. Pywell said he’d found that planting 
2” caliper, 25’ tall trees also helps. 
 
Moon noted that the Posting kiosks have been finished. We need 8 ½” by 11” materials for 
July, August and September. Pywell volunteered to contribute material for July. Moon 
explained that materials stay up for one week.  
 
Moon stated she’ll need help picking up bulbs for the fall bulb sale. She said it will help to 
get more people involved in the project. She added we need to look at raising prices that 
are too low.  
 
Pywell will create street tree signups. Dell asked for an aisle sign. Rehkugler said a quick 
butcher paper sign is appropriate at a pinch at this late date. Dell said several items, such 
as binder clips, string, good tape, are helpful to have on hand at the booth.  
 
 

VIII. OSU LIAISON REPORTS.   
Bill Coslow reported that Dell has been selected to do a presentation on sustainable 
landscaping at this year’s FarWest show. Coslow reported there will be a lot more 
construction this summer immediately following graduation, including the Forestry 
Building, featuring tree protection fencing and some street closures.  
 
He asked about Corvallis Industrial Park street trees, near Block 15. He volunteered to do 
some pruning of low limbs there, especially on ash; Pywell offered to issue permits. 
 
In response to Coslow’s query, Pywell related the former G-T site will be redeveloped as 
student housing, removing Port Orford Cedars in decline and elms in poor shape, and an 
Atlas Deodara. They’ll be used in the new Logs for Lumber Program. The building should 
be completed in fall. Virtually all the heritage Plane trees will be retained, with pruning 
phased. Root pruning will be closely supervised in foundation construction areas.  
 
 

IX. STAFF REPORTS – IF QUESTIONS.   
Supervisor Jude Geist reported that last Thursday there was a tour of the Chip Ross pre-
restoration tour. They walked a circuit around the peak and a spur to an OSU portion of the 
project. The tentative start date for contractor Trout Mountain is July 15th, as soon as 
ground dries to avoid soil compaction and avoiding impact to nesting birds. An OSU 
contractor recently sprayed for invasives on the 100-acre site. He explained that Douglas 
fir will be selectively removed from the site- not all the fir will be removed. There are 
different stands of trees on the site. Some bigleaf maple that are topping the Oregon white 
oaks will be removed. He said the fire and grazing that have historically shaped the site 
vegetation have not occurred over the last century or so, so we need to respond to that. 
 



CBUF Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2016 
Page 5 of 5 
 

All merchantable logs will be sold, and will fund the restoration. Some slash can be burned 
on-site in fall, with other wood used for wood chips on trails there and elsewhere in the 
system.   
 
Dell said he’s contracting with Benton County on public education on fire safety and 
preparedness (FireWise programs for neighborhoods). He highlighted a June 18 
preparedness event at the Fairgrounds and others. Pywell suggested Dell contact Doug 
Baily; they worked together on a FireWise program at Skyline West.  
 
Geist related that the Kendall Farms Natural Area was originally restored and planted at 
high density, anticipating high mortality. However, there turned out to be very low 
mortality, so in early July there will be thinning, spraying invasives and planting shrubs to 
outcompete invasives. The sometimes-muddy path around the site will be chipped 6” deep 
to allow year-round use. Thinning must occur in winter to minimize pine borer damage.  
 
Rehkugler said there’s been a lot of discussion on the South Corvallis listserv. Geist 
explained that it was adaptive management of an existing restoration site. Pywell said 
there’s been concern that thinning will lead to an increased invasive problem. Geist noted 
that the funding for the project is only available for the next eighteen months. Dell said an 
explanation would help tamp down concern on the listservs; Geist offered to send him an 
explanatory summary to post.  
 
Pywell highlighted new tree inventory software, TreeKeeper, which he can access on his 
mobile device in the field. The Wood Reuse Program contract was signed. Removed LBCC 
cedars will be milled soon. Funds go into the reserve account, helping reduce the cost of 
removal, and creating a little income. Geist said it is a higher use than firewood. Rehkugler 
suggested publicizing it; Pywell agreed, saying he will contact media as soon as things start 
to happen.  
 
Pywell highlighted a new Arbor Day banner for the Central Park flagpole.  
 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT.  The meeting was adjourned at 10:38 a.m.  
 


